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P
aw

ky, he w
as instrum

ental in the ruthless overthrow
 of the 

C
om

m
unist-oriented regim

e in G
uatem

ala. G
uy B

anister, w
ho 

reportedly m
anipulated L

ee O
sw

ald in the sum
m

er of 1963, has 
also been linked w

ith the G
uatem

ala operation. T
he report P

o' 
sists that H

unt w
as in M

exico C
ity in late S

eptem
ber 1963; at the 

tim
e of O

sw
ald's visit to M

exico.'" H
unt denies this, as he has 

denied allegations that h
e w

as in D
allas on the day of the assassi- 

nation. 

F
rank Sturgis (ne F

iorini), 13 ° H
ow

ard H
unt's associate in the 

W
atergate burglary, w

as one of those w
ho helped spread the story 

that O
sw

ald w
as affiliated to C

astro's intelligence service. lie is 
still alive. H

unt says he did not m
eet S

turgis until 1972, w
hile 

S
tu

rg
is h

as said
 h

e m
et H

u
n
t tw

o
 y

ears b
efo

re th
e K

en
n
ed

y
 

assassination. Sturgis has declined to say w
here he w

as on the day 
the P

resident w
as killed. 

In 1979 an A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee report stated that 
S

turgis took part in an anti-C
astro operation called "C

ellula F
an-

tasm
a." T

his involved dropping leaflets from
 the skies over C

ubs. 
and S

turgis —
 w

ho is a pilot —
 w

as involved. T
he im

portance of 
the detail is that S

turgis has been connected to the operation by a 
C

uban w
ho attended its planning stages. T

he C
uban is A

ntonio 
V

eciana, and his reason for m
entioning the schem

e to C
ongre ,

  
sional investigators w

as the identity of a C
IA

 officer w
ho took 3  

personal interest in it. T
he officer, says V

eciana, w
as "M

aurice 
B

ishop." 

A
ntonio V

eciana w
as th

e v
ictim

 o
f a m

u
rd

er attem
p
t in

 late 
1979 —

 an am
bush w

hile he w
as on the w

ay hom
e from

 w
ork-

F
our shots w

ere fired, and a fragm
ent of one bullet lodged is 

V
eciana's head. H

e recovered —
 in w

hat police and doctors 
co

n
sid

ered
 a freak

 escap
e. P

u
b
licly

 th
e v

eteran
 an

ti-C
astro

 
fighter has blam

ed the attack on C
astro agents, but privately 

he has also expressed concern that it m
ay have been linked to his 

allegations about C
IA

 case officer "M
aurice B

ishop," w
ho —

 
says V

eciana —
 m

et O
sw

ald shortly before the K
ennedy assas-

sination and later urged the fabrication of a false story about 
O

sw
ald and C

uban diplom
ats in M

exico C
ity. 

"M
aurice B

ishop," m
eanw

hile, rem
ains the center of contro-

versy and the elusive target of continuing research to establish 
his real identity. A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee investigators, w

ort' 

in
g
 o

n
 V

ecian
a's d

escrip
tio

n
, h

av
e b

u
ilt u

p
 a p

ictu
re o

f th
eir 

quarry. "B
ishop," w

ho w
ould now

 be into his sixties, w
as 6'2" 

tail, of athletic build, and w
eighed m

ore than 200 pounds. T
he 

eyes w
ere gray-blue, the hair light brow

n going gray, the com
-

p
lex

io
n
 fair. "B

ish
o
p
's" face w

as u
su

ally
 tan

n
ed

 an
d
 h

e h
ad

  
"sunspots" under his eyes. H

e w
as m

eticulous about his dress, 
and —

 by the early S
eventies —

 w
as w

earing glasses for read-
ing. V

eciana gained the im
pression he w

as either from
 the A

m
er- 

ican S
outh or —

 m
ore likely —

 from
 T

exas. In 1978 the A
ssas-

sinations C
om

m
ittee issued an artist's im

pression of "B
ishop" 

and m
ade a nationw

ide appeal for assistance in tracking him
 

dow
n (see illu

stration
 26, top). T

hat proved unrew
arding, but 

the investigators did m
ake considerable progress in the inform

a- 
tion desert and disinform

ation jungle that they encountered at 
the C

IA
. 

V
eciana recalled that "B

ishop" —
 as his spym

aster in H
a-

vana —
 suggested he seek assistance from

 a num
ber of officials, 

w
orking in the U

.S
. E

m
bassy. O

ne w
as an unnam

ed C
IA

 offi-
cer, a second w

as W
ayne S

m
ith, and the third w

as S
am

 K
ail. 

S
m

ith
, w

h
o
 w

as th
ird

 secretary
 at th

e H
av

an
a E

m
b
assy

, h
ad

 
not been questioned yet —

 just one exam
ple of the failure by 

the A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee m
anagem

ent to follow
 up rele-

vant leads in the V
eciana affair. C

olonel S
am

 K
ail, how

ever, a 
T

exan w
ho w

as a m
ilitary intelligence officer at the E

m
bassy, 

w
as contacted by the C

om
m

ittee. H
e said he saw

 so m
any C

uban 
v
isito

rs th
at h

e co
u
ld

 n
o
t rem

em
b
er V

ecian
a. N

o
r, he said, 

co
u
ld

 h
e recall th

e n
am

e "M
au

rice B
ish

o
p
," b

u
t said

 th
at 

"ag
en

ts o
f th

e C
IA

 w
o
u
ld

 freq
u
en

tly
 u

se th
e n

am
es o

f o
th

er 
E

m
bassy staff personnel in their outside contacts." K

ail later 
assum

ed, w
hile in M

iam
i, that his m

ilitary unit w
as actually 

w
orking for the C

IA
. It w

as K
ail w

ho, in sum
m

er 1963, pro-
P

osed the m
eeting w

ith A
rm

y Intelligence that w
as attended 

by O
sw

ald's D
allas m

entor, G
eorge de M

ohrenschildt. S
o far, 

the K
ail lead has been unproductive apart from

 that connection, 
but the C

om
m

ittee found dram
atic encouragem

ent elsew
here. 

Several 
	

ish
C

IBA
ooffipcials h

av
e said

 th
ey

 d
id

 in
d
eed

 k
n
o
w

 o
f a 

"M
aurice  

ru
st  th

ere is th
e fo

rm
er D

irecto
r o

f th
e C

IA
, K

en
n
ed

y
 

aP
P

ointee John M
cC

one. D
uring his deposition, this conver-

sation took place. 
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Q
U

E
ST

IO
N

: D
o you, or did you, know

 M
aurice B

ishop? 
A

N
SW

E
R

: Y
es. 

Q
U

E
ST

IO
N

: W
as he an A

gency em
ployee? 

A
N

SW
E

R
: I b

elieve so. 
• - . 	- 	

. 
k

n
ew

, h
e cou

ld
 n

o lon
ger rem

em
b

er w
h

at "
B

ish
op

"
 actu

ally 
did for the A

gency. T
here w

as another intriguing developm
ent 

w
hen the C

om
m

ittee interview
ed a form

er C
IA

 agent described 
p

u
b

licly m
erely as "

B
.H

."
 W

h
en

 ask
ed

 if h
e knew

 M
aurice 

B
ishop, "B

.H
." replied that "M

r. B
ishop w

as in the organiza -
tion, but I had no personal day-to-day open relationship w

ith 
h

im
. . . ."

 "
B

.H
."

 w
as vagu

e ab
ou

t "
B

ish
op

,"
 sayin

g on
ly 

that he had been a senior officer and that he had m
et him

 "tw
o 

or three tim
es" at C

IA
 headquarters. In M

iam
i,' how

ever, the 
C

om
m

ittee stu
m

b
led

 on
 a w

itn
ess w

h
o w

as m
ore sp

ecific. H
e 

had form
erly been a case officer at JM

/W
A

V
E

, the headquarters 
in F

lorida for the C
IA

's Secret W
ar against C

astro. T
his offi-

cer, w
hom

 the C
om

m
ittee quoted under the pseudonym

 "R
on 

C
ross," had handled one of the m

ost active anti-C
astro groups 

an
d

 w
as p

oten
tially w

ell p
laced

 to h
ave k

n
ow

n
 "

B
ish

op
."

 H
is 

answ
ers to the C

om
m

ittee questions w
ere dram

atic. 
C

om
m

ittee in
vestigators th

rew
 n

ot on
e, b

u
t th

ree n
am

es 
at "

C
ross."

 T
h

e first w
as "

B
ish

op
,"

 an
oth

er w
as "

K
n

igh
t. 

and the third w
as the real nam

e of an officer w
ho had w

orked 
out of H

avana. "C
ross" duly pointed out the fact that the third 

n
am

e w
as th

e tru
e n

am
e of som

eb
od

y h
e h

ad
 en

cou
n

tered
 in

 
H

avana. "K
night," as he recalled it, w

as a nam
e occasionally 

u
sed

 b
y H

ow
ard

 H
u

n
t. A

n
d

 "
B

ish
op

,"
 "

C
ross"

 b
elieved

. 
w

as the nam
e used by D

avid P
hillips. 

P
hillips, the reader w

ill recall, is the form
er top C

IA
 offi-

cer w
ho w

as running M
exico C

ity C
uban operations —

 at the 
tim

e of the O
sw

ald visit, and of the strange visits to the C
uban 

and Soviet E
m

bassies by a m
an w

ho m
ay —

 on som
e occasions 

at least —
 h

ave b
een

 an
 O

sw
ald

 im
p

oster. It is P
h

illip
s w

h
o. 

in
 retirem

en
t, h

as com
e u

p
 w

ith
 h

is ow
n

 exp
lan

ation
s of th

e 
lack

 of su
rveillan

ce p
ictu

res of th
e real O

sw
ald

, an
d

 of th
e 

disappearing sound recordings of the visitor to the em
bassies -

and som
e of w

hose testim
ony failed to satisfy tw

o C
hief C

oun-
sels of th

e- A
ssassin

ation
s C

om
m

ittee. "
C

ross,"
 a few

 d
ays 

A
F

T
E

R
M

A
T

H
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after h

is in
itial statem

en
ts, d

eclared
 h

im
self "

alm
ost certain

"
 

th
at P

h
illip

s, w
h

o som
etim

es visited
 th

e M
iam

i C
IA

 station
 

from
 W

ashington, did indeed use the cover nam
e of "B

ishop." 
In

 ad
d

ition
, "C

ross" n
ow

 cou
p

led
 "B

ish
o " w

ith
 h

 
au

n
ce —

 a n
am

e th
e C

om
m

ittee in
vestigators h

ad
 n

ot so 
far m

entioned. 
D

avid
 P

h
illip

s testified
 on

 oath
 to th

e A
ssassin

ation
s 

C
om

m
ittee in

 1978. H
e d

en
ied

 ever h
avin

g u
sed

 th
e n

am
e 

"
B

ish
op

,"
 an

d
 said

 h
e h

ad
 n

ever h
eard

 th
e n

am
e u

sed
 b

y a 
C

IA
 em

p
loyee. H

is d
en

ial, h
ow

ever, h
as n

ot stilled
 th

e sp
ecu

-
lation around his nam

e —
 and it continues as this edition goes 

to press. 
P

hillips, a T
exan born near F

ort W
orth, originally w

anted 
to becom

e an actor. A
fter a false start in the theater, he m

oved 
to C

h
ile an

d
 tried

 h
is h

an
d

 at p
u

b
lish

in
g a sm

all E
n

glish
- 

lan
gu

age n
ew

sp
ap

er. It w
as th

ere th
at h

e attracted
 th

e atten
-

tion
 of local C

IA
 officers, w

h
o lau

n
ch

ed
 h

im
 on

 h
is lon

g ca- 
reer in

 U
.S

. in
telligen

ce 	
a career w

h
ich

 sp
an

n
ed

 som
e 

of th
e A

gen
cy's m

ost in
fam

ou
s op

eration
s to top

p
le foreign

 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

ts
 (s

e
e
 illu

s
tra

tio
n

 2
6
, rig

h
t). 

In
 1954, in

 associa-
tion

 w
ith

 a C
IA

 team
 in

clu
d

in
g H

ow
ard

 H
u

n
t as P

olitical 
A

ction
 O

fficer, P
h

illip
s p

layed
 a lead

in
g p

art in
 th

e over-
th

row
 of th

e an
ti-A

m
erican

, left-lean
in

g A
rb

en
z govern

m
en

t 
in G

uatem
ala. It w

as a rem
arkably cunning operation, in w

hich 
A

rbenz w
as panicked into resignation as m

uch by propaganda 
as b

y actu
al force of arm

s. P
h

illip
s, a p

rop
agan

d
a exp

ert, ran
 

th
e clan

d
estin

e V
oice of L

ib
eration

 rad
io —

 b
road

castin
g 

false rep
orts ab

ou
t im

agin
ary reb

el forces an
d

 ab
ou

t b
attles 

w
h

ich
 n

ever took
 p

lace. W
h

en
 A

m
erican

-b
ack

ed
 forces took

 
over, P

hillips spent som
e tim

e in G
uatem

ala studying the docu-
m

en
ts of th

e d
efeated

 regim
e. It w

as h
e w

h
o n

oted
 th

e recen
t 

activities in
 G

u
atem

ala of an
 ob

scu
re you

n
g revolu

tion
ary 

called
 C

h
e G

u
evara, an

d
 op

en
ed

 a C
IA

 file on
 h

im
. S

ix years 
later, in 1960, P

hillips w
as in at the very start w

hen P
resident 

E
isen

h
ow

er ap
p

roved
 th

e earliest p
lan

s to reverse C
astro's 

revolution in C
uba. H

e attended the  first C
IA

 execu
tive m

eet-
in

g on
 th

e su
b

ject, an
d

 later b
ecam

e p
rop

agan
d

a ch
ief of th

e 
B

ay of P
igs operation. H

e w
as C

hief of Station in the D
om

ini-
can R

epublic during 1965, the year A
m

erican troops invaded 

i 
IN. 	

I • II 
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the country. A
t the peak of a career in w

hich he rose to becom
e 

C
hief of the W

estern H
em

isphere D
ivision, P

hillips w
as to the 

- fore in A
m

erican m
eddling in C

hilean affairs. H
e w

as chief of 
th

e C
h

ile T
ask

 F
orce estab

lish
ed

 to try to p
reven

t S
alvad

or 

	

A
llende assum

ing the presidency to w
hich he had been legally 	 

elected
. P

h
illip

s, for all th
at, in

sists h
e is a m

an
 of p

rogressive 
sym

pathies. 
T

he A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee inquiry, faced w
ith the sug-

gestion
 th

at P
h

illip
s w

as "
B

ish
op

,"
 took

 in
to accou

n
t cer-

tain
 coin

cid
en

ces b
etw

een
 P

h
illip

s' career an
d

 "
B

ish
op

"
 as 

d
escrib

ed
 b

y V
ecian

a. P
h

illip
s w

as a T
exan

, an
d

 V
ecian

a h
ad

 
from

 th
e first exp

ressed
 th

e b
elief th

at "
B

ish
op

"
 w

as m
ost 

lik
ely from

 T
exas. P

h
illip

s h
ad

 served
 in

 relevan
t p

laces at 
tim

es con
sisten

t w
ith

 V
ecian

a's accou
n

t of "
B

ish
op

's"
 ac-

tivities. In
 1960, w

h
en

 V
ecian

a said
 h

e w
as recru

ited
 b

y 
"

B
ish

op
"

 in
 H

avan
a, P

h
illip

s w
as servin

g th
ere as a covert 

op
erative. V

ecian
a says "

B
ish

op
"

 in
itially in

trod
u

ced
 h

im
-

self as a rep
resen

tative of a con
stru

ction
 firm

 h
ead

q
u

artered
 

in
 B

elgiu
m

. H
e also u

sed
 a false B

elgian
 p

assp
ort. P

h
illip

s, 
in a biography not yet published w

hen V
eciana first m

ade his 
allegation

s, states th
at b

y 1959, follow
in

g th
e C

astro revolu
-

tion
, h

e w
as u

sin
g h

is ow
n

 p
u

b
lic relation

s firm
 as a fron

t for 
C

IA
 op

eration
s. O

n
e overt fu

n
ction

 of th
e com

p
an

y w
as to 

rep
resen

t "
foreign

 in
d

u
strialists."

 T
h

ere is evid
en

ce th
at th

e 
C

IA
 has indeed used B

elgian identity papers for secret opera- 
tions abroad. 

T
h

e A
n

glo-A
m

erican
 D

irectory of C
u

b
a for 1960 carries 

an entry for P
hillips as a "P

ublic R
elations C

ouncillor." P
hil-

lip
s, h

ow
ever, says h

e w
as ou

t of C
u

b
a b

y early M
arch

 1960. 
before th

e "
m

id
-1960"

 p
eriod

 w
h

en
 V

ecian
a says h

e w
as re-

cru
ited

 b
y "

B
ish

op
."

 T
h

is au
th

or's research
, for th

is E
d

ition
, 

has produced som
e corroboration that P

hillips did cease to be 
a p

erm
an

en
t H

avan
a resid

en
t in

 early 1960. A
ssassin

ation
s 

C
om

m
ittee research

, h
ow

ever, rep
orted

ly in
d

icated
 th

at 
P

h
illip

s cou
ld

 in
d

eed
 h

ave b
een

 in
 H

avan
a d

u
rin

g th
e p

eriod
 

m
entioned by V

eciana. T
he C

IA
's liaison in the C

astro regim
e 
w
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him
. V

eciana says it w
as "B

ishop" w
ho incited him

 to take part 
in

 a p
lot to m

u
rd

er F
id

el C
astro, w

h
ile P

h
illip

s says h
e k

n
ew

 
nothing of C

IA
 assassination plots. H

e has, how
ever, adm

itted 
that —

 in C
uba —

 he took part in other anti-C
astro  activity very  

sh
izilar to th

at ascrib
ed

 to "
B

ish
op

."
 P

h
illip

s, w
ritin

g b
e-

foie th
e V

ecian
a allegation

s b
ecam

e k
n

ow
n

, said
 h

e con
tacted

 
one of a group of C

ubans w
ho w

ere planning an early coup at-
tem

p
t again

st C
astro. H

is C
IA

 in
stru

ction
s, P

h
illip

s w
rote, 

w
ere to introduce him

self as "an A
m

erican anxious to assist," 
p

erh
ap

s "
u

sin
g a false id

en
tity."

 T
h

e p
lan

 leak
ed

, an
d

 sev-
eral of th

e C
u

b
an

s in
volved

 w
ere arrested

. M
u

ch
 th

e sam
e 

h
ap

p
en

ed
 w

h
en

 V
ecian

a's p
lot to k

ill C
astro w

as d
iscovered

. 
V

eciana has claim
ed that "B

ishop" w
as involved in a m

uch 
later p

lot to assassin
ate C

astro, in
 1971 in

 C
h

ile. H
e also says 

that "B
ishop" played an im

portant role in efforts to rem
ove the 

then C
hilean P

resident, Salvador A
llende. A

llende fell in 1973 -
the year V

eciana says he w
as finally paid off by "B

ishop" w
ith 

a lum
p sum

 of m
ore than a quarter of a m

illion dollars. P
hillips, 

w
h

o p
layed

 a lead
in

g role in
 C

IA
 op

eration
s again

st A
llen

d
e, 

says th
at —

 as ch
ief of C

IA
 L

atin
 A

m
erican

 op
eration

s in
 

1973 —
 h

e k
n

ow
s th

at n
o su

ch
 C

IA
 p

aym
en

t w
as m

ad
e to 

V
eciana. H

e insists that such a sum
 could have been paid only 

w
ith

 h
is ow

n
 ap

p
roval or th

at of th
e D

irector of th
e C

IA
. It is 

know
n, how

ever, that C
IA

 operatives in L
atin A

m
erica —

 in-
cluding P

hillips as a key executive —
 disposed of thirteen m

il-
lion dollars on covert action operations betw

een 1963 and 1974. 
C

on
gression

al O
versigh

t C
om

m
ittees h

ave yet to b
e told

 h
ow

 
m

u
ch

 of th
at vast su

m
 w

as sp
en

t. M
illion

s, h
ow

ever, w
en

t to 
fund m

anipulation of radio stations and new
spapers for propa-

gan
d

a p
u

rp
oses, an

 area w
h

ich
 h

as b
een

 P
h

illip
s' sp

eciality 
sin

ce th
e F

ifties. N
on

e of th
is, of cou

rse, p
roves th

at th
e C

IA
. 

let alon
e P

h
illip

s, m
ad

e th
e p

aym
en

t to V
ecian

a. F
u

n
d

s w
ere 

availab
le, h

ow
ever, an

d
 th

ey are so far fu
zzily accou

n
ted

 for. 
P

hillips, m
eanw

hile, says he m
ay be able to produce docum

en-
tation show

ing that he w
as at C

IA
 headquarters near W

ashing-
ton during at least part of the day "B

ishop" allegedly paid off 
V

 ' 
as m

a• e no suc 
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ap
p

eal to th
e record

 over h
is w

h
ereab

ou
ts at th

e tim
e of th

e 
in

cid
en

t at th
e h

eart of th
e` B

ish
op

' fu
ror —

 th
e m

eetin
g 

in autum
n 1963, w

hen V
eciana says he encountered O

sw
ald in 

"
B

ish
op

's"
 com

p
an

y in
 D

allas, T
exas. P

h
illip

s n
ow

 says th
at 

h
e w

as in
 T

exas "
arou

n
d

 th
at tim

e,"
 visitin

g relatives th
irty 
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tion
s h

e recalled
 w

ith
 P

h
illip

s' assistan
t, D

ou
g G

u
p

ton
. G

u
p

-
ton

, says "
C

ross,"
 w

ou
ld

 often
 say som

eth
in

g lik
e, "

W
ell, I 

gu
ess M

r. B
ish

op
 w

ill h
ave to talk

 w
ith

 h
im

,"
 an

d
 "

C
ross"

 
w

ou
ld

 k
n

ow
 h

e w
as referrin

g to h
is b

oss, D
avid

 P
h

illip
s. A

t 
th

is p
oin

t, h
ow

ever, th
e A

ssassin
ation

s C
om

m
ittee in

q
u

iry  
faltered. 

T
he C

om
m

ittee traced G
upton, w

ho confirm
ed that he.w

as 
in

 d
aily con

tact w
ith

 "
C

ross."
 H

ow
ever, h

e said
 h

e "
d

id
 n

ot 
recall w

h
eth

er eith
er H

u
n

t or P
h

illip
s u

sed
 th

e cover n
am

e 
"

K
n

igh
t,"

 n
or d

id
 h

e rem
em

b
er P

h
illip

s u
sin

g th
e n

am
e 

"
M

au
rice B

ish
op

."
 F

aced
 w

ith
 "

C
ross' "

 recollection
 of h

is 
h

avin
g referred

 freq
u

en
tly to P

h
illip

s b
y th

e n
am

e "
B

ish
op

,"
 

G
u

p
ton

 said
, "

W
ell m

ayb
e I d

id
, I d

on
't rem

em
b

er."
 H

e said
 

he did not recognize the artist's im
pression of "B

ishop" draw
n 

from
 th

e d
escrip

tion
 b

y V
ecian

a. H
e d

id
 say, h

ow
ever, th

at 
P

h
illip

s "
u

sed
 m

an
y of h

is old
 con

tacts from
 H

avan
a in

 h
is 

personal operations." 
D

u
rin

g th
e search

 for "
B

ish
op

,"
 A

n
ton

io V
ecian

a w
as 

sh
ow

n
 p

h
otograp

h
s of D

avid
 P

h
illip

s. H
e rep

orted
ly stared

 at 
one picture for a long tim

e, and then said, "It is close.. . . D
oes 

he have a brother?" F
inally, though, V

eciana said, "N
o, it's not 

him
. . . . B

ut I w
ould like to talk to him

." Soon, V
eciana had an 

op
p

ortu
n

ity to ob
serve D

avid
 P

h
illip

s in
 th

e flesh
 —

 at a lu
n

-
ch

eon
 of th

e A
ssociation

 of F
orm

er In
telligen

ce O
fficers.* 

A
fterw

ards, according to a published account of the confronta-
tion

, V
ecian

a rep
eated

 h
is d

en
ial th

at P
h

illip
s w

as "
B

ish
op

,"
 

sayin
g, "

N
o, h

e's n
ot h

im
. . . . B

u
t he know

s." A
sked w

hat he 
m

eant, V
eciana m

erely repeated, "H
e know

s." P
hillips, for his 

part, show
ed no sign of recognizing V

eciana during the luncheon 
session —

 although V
eciana w

as repeatedly introduced to him
. 

L
ater, in sw

orn testim
ony, P

hillips w
as to claim

 that V
eciana had 

b
een

 in
trod

u
ced

 n
ot b

y n
am

e, b
u

t m
erely as "

th
e d

river."
 

A
ccording to the A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee investigator present, 

P
hillips w

as clearly told V
eciana's nam

e, three tim
es, in front of 

w
intesses. 

* T
h

e m
eetin

g w
as ad

d
ressed

 b
y C

lare B
ooth

e L
u

ce, w
h

o crop
p

ed
 u

p
 

in th
e in

q
u

iry in
 con

n
ection

 w
ith

 d
isin

form
ation

. L
u

ce, a stau
n

ch
  d

e  
fen

d
er of th

e in
telligen

ce estab
lish

m
en

t, is on
 th

e b
oard

 of th
e A

sso-
ciation. 

 

 
 

m
iles from

 D
allas. 

C
ongress' A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee pursued the declara-

tion
 b

y M
iam

i case officer "
R

on
 C

ross,"
 th

at P
h

illip
s an

d
 

H
ow

ard
 H

u
n

t h
ad

 op
erated

 u
n

d
er th

e n
am

es "
B

ish
op

"
 an

d
 

"
K

n
igh

t"
 resp

ectively —
 u

sin
g w

h
at ap

p
ears to b

e a ch
ess 

an
alogy. It fou

n
d

 a sort of corrob
oration

, w
h

ich
 also con

tain
s 

a con
trad

iction
. H

u
n

t, w
h

o h
as w

ritten
 several n

ovels an
d

 a 
n

on
-fiction

 w
ork

 ab
ou

t th
e B

ay of P
igs, h

as u
sed

 p
seu

d
on

ym
s 

in
 h

is b
ook

s. F
or exam

p
le, alth

ou
gh

 H
u

n
t claim

s h
e d

id
 n

ot 
m

eet F
ran

k
 F

iorin
i/S

tu
rgis u

n
til th

e S
even

ties, a ch
aracter 

very like him
 appears under the nam

e H
ank Sturgis in a novel 

w
ritten as early as 1949. T

he fictional character is an ex-M
arine 

turned gam
bler and soldier-of-fortune, a career w

hich sounds 
sim

ilar to th
at of th

e real-life in
d

ivid
u

al w
h

o legally took
 th

e 
nam

e F
rank Sturgis in 1952. In his book about the B

ay of P
igs, 

H
u

n
t refers to h

is old
 associate P

h
illip

s, th
en

 p
rop

agan
d

a 
ch

ief for th
e op

eration
, as "K

n
igh

t." In
 h

is 1977 m
em

oirs, for 
h

is p
art, P

h
illip

s m
ak

es m
u

ch
 of th

is id
en

tification
, com

m
en

t-
ing that "B

estow
ing the nam

e of K
night w

as the ultim
ate acco-

lade —
 people w

ho have w
orked in C

IA
 w

ill recall that pseudo-
n

ym
 b

elon
ged

 to on
e of th

e A
gen

cy's m
ost sen

ior officers, a 
m

an
 H

u
n

t id
olized

. . . ."
 T

h
e m

an
 H

u
n

t id
olized

, it tu
rn

s ou
t, 

w
as R

ich
ard

 H
elm

s, th
e con

troversial form
er D

irector of th
e 

C
IA

. T
h

e recen
t au

th
oritative b

ook
 on

 H
elm

s, T
h

e M
an

 W
h

o
 

K
e
p

t th
e
 S

e
c
re

ts
, 

states flatly th
at "

K
n

igh
t"

 w
as H

elm
s' 

codenam
e in the C

IA
. H

unt's literary back-patting of P
hillips, 

how
ever, does not necessarily correspond w

ith the use of cover 
nam

es in real-life operations in the early Sixties. If H
unt indeed 

id
olized

 H
elm

s, it seem
s p

lau
sib

le th
at —

 as form
er case offi- 

cer "C
ross" recalls —

 he w
ould have dubbed h

im
self "K

n
ig

h
t" 

d
u

rin
g an

ti-C
astro op

eration
s. "

C
ross,"

 of cou
rse, su

ggests it 
w

as P
h

illip
s w

h
o b

orrow
ed

 th
e oth

er n
am

e from
 th

e ch
ess-

board, "B
ishop." H

e said the reason he w
as "alm

ost positive" 
P

hillips actually used that nam
e w

as because of the conversa- 
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In the end, C
ongress' A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee w

as not 
satisfied w

ith the responses by either V
eciana or P

hillips. Its 
R

eport said that the C
om

m
ittee "suspected V

eciana w
as lying 

w
hen he denied that the retired officer w

as B
ishop . . ." It re-

ferred only to a "retired officer" as having been the subject of 
the confrontation w

ith V
eciana, but a detailed appendix  to th

e 

R
ep

ort sh
ow

s th
at P

h
illip

s w
as th

e officer d
iscu

ssed
. 131  T

h
e 

R
eport said of P

hillips, ". . . F
or his part, the retired officer 

aroused the C
om

m
ittee's suspicion w

hen he told the C
om

m
ittee 

he did not recognize V
eciana as the founder of A

lpha 66, espe-
cially since the officer had once been deeply involved in A

gency 
an

ti-C
astro op

eration
s . ."

 
T

here is no evidence that the "retired officer," P
hillips, had 

any part in a conspiracy to m
urder the P

resident. M
oreover, 

w
hatever the true identity of "B

ishop," V
eciana's account does 

not state that "B
ishop" plotted the P

resident's assassination. 

W
hat V

eciana does allege, how
ever, is—

 if true—
 highly relevant 

to the continuing inquiry into the circum
stances surrounding the 

tragedy. T
he allegation is that a U

.S. intelligence officer m
et w

ith 
O

sw
ald

 sh
ortly b

efore th
e crim

e, an
d

 su
b

seq
u

en
tly in

cited
 a 

C
uban contact to help fabricate a false story about an O

sw
ald link 

w
ith

 C
u

b
an

 d
ip

lom
ats. T

h
at, clearly, m

u
st b

e exh
au

stively 
investigated. 

T
he A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee has left the "B

ishop" affair 
unresolved and under-researched. Its inquiries had been stym

ied 
by confusing responses to its questions about "B

ishop" addressed 
to th

e C
IA

 an
d

 to its form
er em

p
loyees. O

n
ce th

e A
gen

cy 
declared it could find no reference to "B

ishop" in its files, one-
tim

e D
irector M

cC
one said he m

ust have been m
istaken w

hen he 
told

 th
e C

om
m

ittee h
e did 

rem
em

ber "B
ishop." "B

.H
.," the 

form
er covert operative believed by C

om
m

ittee staff to have been 
u

sed
 on

 assign
m

en
ts in

volvin
g violen

ce, stu
ck

 to h
is story of 

having m
et "B

ishop" at C
IA

 headquarters. "R
on C

ross," the 
M

iam
i case officer w

ho nam
ed H

ow
ard H

unt as "K
night" and 

. P
hillips as "B

ishop," has not w
ithdraw

n his allegation. O
ne C

om
-

m
ittee in

vestigator, w
eigh

in
g th

e variou
s statem

en
ts an

d
 th

e 
circum

stances in w
hich they em

erged, believes that the statem
ent 

by "B
.H

." m
ay be a red hei ring designed to confuse  the trail. H

e 

tends to believe M
cC

one's instinctive initial reaction, and also the 
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replies of "R
on C

ross" about H
unt and P

hillips. T
he feeling 

rem
ains that som

ebody in the C
IA

, or w
ho w

as form
erly in the 

C
IA

, is playing chess w
ith the K

ennedy inquiry. 
In its closing m

onths, w
ith the evidence about possible M

afia 
con

n
ection

s w
ith

 O
sw

ald
 in

 N
ew

 O
rlean

s b
u

ild
in

g up, the C
om

-
m

ittee veered in that direction to the exclusion of other evidence. 
In fact, taking together the evidence of N

ew
 O

rleans and M
exico, 

this w
as surely an error of judgem

ent. T
hat, com

bined w
ith the 

pressures of tim
e and m

oney, led to the dying-off of top-level 
enthusiasm

 for the hunt for "B
ishop." A

s w
e have seen, vital leads 

rem
ain unchecked. So, too, does another of V

eciana's efforts to 
help the investigation. H

e states that, in the very earliest days of 
his relationship w

ith "B
ishop," he noted that his A

m
erican con- 

tact had w
ith him

 a B
elgian passport. V

eciana noted the nam
e 

"F
rigault" on the passport, and he has produced a slip of paper 

w
ith that nam

e on it. H
e says this is a note he m

ade at the tim
e, 

w
hich he has kept ever since. C

ongress' A
ssassinations C

om
m

it-
tee failed to pursue this lead, w

hich —
 like the other neglected 

clu
es —

 sh
ou

ld
 n

ow
 b

e follow
ed

 u
p

 p
rom

p
tly. T

h
ose d

irectly 
involved in this area of the investigation are confident there w

as 
indeed a "B

ishop," and believe it is of param
ount im

portance that 
he be unm

asked. C
learly this is right. 

It is certain
ly p

ossib
le th

at a ren
egad

e elem
en

t in
 U

.S
. in

-
telligence.  m

an
ip

u
lated

 O
sw

ald
 —

 w
h

atever h
is role on

 N
o-

vem
ber 22, 1963. T

hat sam
e elem

ent m
ay have activated paw

ns 
in the anti-C

astro m
ovem

ent and the M
afia to m

urder the P
resi-

dent and to execute O
sw

ald. 
T

h
e very su

ggestion
 th

at som
e of th

ose ch
arged

 w
ith

 
protecting A

m
erican security should so betray their trust is clearly 

abhorrent to m
oderate citizens. U

nfortunately there is nothing 
in

h
eren

tly im
p

lau
sib

le in
 th

e scen
ario. T

h
e revelation

s of th
e 

S
even

ties h
ave sh

ow
n

 on
ly too clearly th

at th
ere w

ere rotten
 

apples in the C
IA

 apparatus and that they included som
e of those 

m
ost passionately com

m
itted to the elim

ination of F
idel C

astro. 
In the nam

e of that cause, intelligence officers dabbled in unau-
th

orized
 op

eration
s, in

clu
d

in
g assassin

ation
 p

lots w
h

ich
 u

n
til 

recently  seem
ed

 to b
elon

g in
 th

e p
u

rp
le p

ages of p
u

lp
 fiction

. In
  

pursuit of these follies, C
IA

 officials w
ere deeply involved w

ith 
top m

em
bers of the M

afia. T
he m

ob hated the K
ennedy adm

inis- 
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tration, and so did som
e of those in the C

IA
 w

hose view
s clashed 

w
ith

 th
e P

resid
en

t's. T
h

e tim
e of th

e B
ay of P

igs, w
h

en
 th

e 
President "betrayed" the cause of the anti-C

astro m
ovem

ent, w
as 

coincidental w
ith the  K

ennedy onslaught on the M
afia, including, 

specifically, the forcible eviction of C
arlos M

arcellu. O
ver C

uba, 
the M

afia and the exiles nursed the sam
e resentm

ents as m
any in 

the C
IA

. T
here w

ere those in the C
IA

, steeped in an everyday 
aura of deception and violent action, w

ho exercised unconscion- 
ab

le p
ow

er. T
h

e sign
s are th

at, at least from
 th

e tim
e of th

e 
unauthorized raids on Soviet shipping after the m

issile crisis, som
e 

individuals in intelligence encouraged actions designed to sabot-
age the P

resident's search for peace. T
his cannot be dism

issed as 
unfounded speculation. C

ongress' A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee 
noted that, even at the tim

e of the B
ay of P

igs debacle, a senior 
C

IA
 officer reportedly incited C

uban exiles to disobey P
residen-

tial policy. B
efore the invasion, the C

IA
 director of operations, 

w
orking under the cover nam

e of "F
rank B

ender," assem
bled 

exile leaders at their G
uatem

ala training cam
p. A

ccording to the 
authoritative history, "B

ender" told the C
ubans that "T

here w
ere 

forces in the adm
inistration trying to block the invasion, and 

Frank m
ight be ordered to stop it. If he received such an order, he 

said he w
ould secretly inform

 P
epe and O

liva. P
epe [P

epe San 
R

om
an, the exile com

m
ander] rem

em
bers Frank's next w

ords this 
w

ay: 'If this happens you com
e here and m

ake som
e kind of show

, 
as if you w

ere putting us, the advisers, in prison, and you go ahead 
w

ith the program
 as w

e have talked about it, and w
e w

ill give you 
the w

hole plan, even if w
e are your prisoners.'. . . F

rank then 
laughed and said, 'In the end w

e w
ill w

in.' " 1 "
 

M
any m

onths later, during the m
issile crisis, R

obert K
ennedy 

w
as appalled to discover that —

 as the w
orld w

aited in fear of a 
nuclear holocaust—

 one C
IA

 officer had conceived on his ow
n the 

project of dispatching ten com
m

ando team
s to C

uba. T
hree 

groups had already set off. T
he P

resident's brother investigated 
the m

atter and found that top C
IA

 officials knew
 nothing about it. 

T
he officer responsible for this idiocy w

as W
illiam

 H
arvey, the 

C
IA

 operative said by an official of the C
uban Special G

roup to 

* T
h

e officer's real n
am

e w
as rep

orted
ly "

D
roller"

 (T
h

om
as P

ow
ers, op. 

cit. , p
. 1

0
7

): 
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have hated R
obert K

ennedy "w
ith a purple passion." B

efore his 
eventual rem

oval to a foreign posting, H
arvey's expertise w

as 
harnessed to tw

o fam
iliar projects. O

ne w
as the "E

xecutive 
A

ction" schem
e, in w

hich H
arvey had been dabbling even before 

th
e B

ay of P
igs. Its purpose, as the C

IA
 has adm

itted, w
as to 

research m
eans to overthrow

 foreign leaders, including a "capa-
bility to perform

 assassinations." T
o that end, H

arvey contacted 
Q

1/W
IN

, the as yet unidentified C
IA

 "asset" w
hom

 H
arvey used to 

canvass the underw
orld for "an available pool of assassins." From

 
late 1961 until 1963, H

arvey headed another operation —
 the 

C
IA

 m
achinations w

ith the M
afia to kill F

idel C
astro. H

e w
as 

actively involved in the field and in that capacity had m
eetings 

w
ith the gangster John R

oselli, the link-m
an to Santos T

rafficante 
in the C

astro assassination plots. 
H

arvey's desperate folly during the m
issile crisis, and "B

en-
der's" apparent incitem

ent to m
utiny during the B

ay of P
igs 

operation, are both recorded by distinguished chroniclers. T
hese 

episodes are evidence, if evidence is still needed, that som
e in the 

C
IA

 w
ere ready, even eager, to flout the w

ishes of P
resident 

K
ennedy. W

hile the A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee rightly concluded 
that the C

IA
 as an agency had no part in the assassination, it is 

w
holly possible that m

avericks from
 the intelligence w

orld w
ere 

involved. 
A

fter his brother's death in D
allas, A

ttorney G
eneral R

obert 
K

ennedy confided such suspicions to a fam
ily friend, then D

irec-
tor of the C

IA
, John M

cC
one. T

he younger K
ennedy later recall-

ed, "Y
ou know

, at the tim
e I asked M

cC
one . . . if they had killed 

m
y brother, and I asked him

 in a w
ay that he couldn't lie to m

e. 
an

d
 th

ey h
ad

n
't."

 A
s w

e h
ave seen

, R
ob

ert K
en

n
ed

y later 
developed grave doubts about the official version of the D

allas 
m

urder and suspected that organized crim
e m

ight have had a part 
in it. A

s for M
cC

one, he believed from
 the start that there had 

been m
ore than one gunm

an in D
ealey P

laza. In 1979, the suspi-
cions of both m

en have been vindicated by the research of the 
A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee. T

oday, furtherm
ore, it is doubtful 

that M
cC

one w
ould still feel able to give assurances of A

m
erican 

in
telligen

ce officers' in
n

ocen
ce, an

d
 certain

ly R
ob

ert K
en

n
ed

y  
w

ould have had difficulty accepting them
. In N

ovem
ber 1963, 

w
hen the question first cam

e up, C
IA

 D
irector M

cC
one had no 
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idea w
hat outrages his ow

n people had been com
m

itting. H
e knew

 
nothing of the C

IA
 plots to kill C

astro. N
or had he been told that, 

as part of their lethal schem
es, som

e senior officers had becom
e 

deeply involved w
ith the very M

afia bosses suspected of plotting 
to k

ill th
e P

resid
en

t. A
llen

 D
ulles, M

cC
one's predecessor, did 

know
 of assassination plots against C

astro but failed to m
ention it 

to h
is colleagu

es w
h

en
 h

e b
ecam

e a m
em

b
er of th

e W
arren

 
C

om
m

ission. If R
obert K

ennedy had survived to learn w
hat w

e 
know

 today, he w
ould surely have extended his suspicions of an 

organized-crim
e role in the assassination to include the A

m
erican 

intelligence elem
ent. 

T
he past tw

o years have m
arked a historic turn-around in the 

unraveling of the K
ennedy case. F

orm
er W

arren C
om

m
ission 

cou
n

sel B
u

rt G
riffin

 told
 a B

B
C

 colleagu
e an

d
 m

yself, "
I feel 

betrayed. I feel that the C
IA

 lied to us, that w
e had an agency of 

govern
m

en
t h

ere w
h

ich
 w

e w
ere d

ep
en

d
in

g u
p

on
, th

at w
e 

. exp
ected

 to b
e tru

th
fu

l w
ith

 u
s, an

d
 to coop

erate w
ith

 u
s. A

n
d

 
T

hey didn't do it. T
he C

IA
 concealed from

 us the fact that they 
w

ere involved in efforts to assassinate C
astro w

hich could have 
been of extrem

e im
portance to us. E

specially the fact that they 
w

ere in
volved

 in
 w

ork
in

g w
ith

 th
e M

afia at th
at tim

e."
 Ju

d
ge 

G
riffin

 feels th
e sam

e ab
ou

t th
e F

B
I an

d
 says, "

W
h

at is m
ost 

disturbing to m
e is that tw

o agencies of the governm
ent, that w

ere 
supposed to be loyal and faithful to us, deliberately m

isled us." 
Judge G

riffin's rueful conclusions about the perform
ance of the 

in
telligen

ce agen
cies are n

ow
 n

ot allegation
s b

u
t h

ard
 facts, 

ham
m

ered into the record by successive C
ongressional inquiries. 

A
s for the specific case of the K

ennedy killing, the A
ssassinations 

C
om

m
ittee declared in 1979 that "the C

IA
–M

afia–C
uban plots 

had all the elem
ents necessary for a successful assassination con-

spiracy—
 people, m

otive and m
eans—

 and the evidence indicated 
th

at th
e p

articip
an

ts m
igh

t w
ell h

ave con
sid

ered
 u

sin
g th

e 
resources at their disposal to increase their pow

er and alleviate 
their problem

s by assassinating the P
resident. N

evertheless, the 
C

om
m

ittee w
as ultim

ately frustrated in its attem
pt to determ

ine 
details of those activities that m

ight have led to the assassination 
—

 identification of participants, associations, tim
ing of events, 

an
d

 so on
... ."

 
A

s this book w
as being com

pleted, one indefatigable A
m

eri- 
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can reporter found that his carefully researched stories on the 
K

ennedy case w
ere not getting into print. O

n appealing to his 
editor, he received a m

em
orandum

 regretting that he w
as still 

"posing questions that are unansw
erable." H

e sh
ou

ld
 in

stead
, 

w
rote th

e ed
itor, "

carefu
lly p

oin
t ou

t th
at th

e A
ssassin

ation
s 

" C
om

m
ittee's dem

ise is reflective of the general public's feelings 
for th

e m
om

en
t —

 'L
et it rest.' "

 W
h

en
 th

e C
om

m
ittee's fin

al 
report cam

e out, the m
ost pow

erful organs of the A
m

erican m
edia 

echoed that sentim
ent. Som

e decried the significant achievem
ents 

the C
om

m
ittee had produced. L

ong before their reporters could 
possibly have studied the m

onum
ental verbiage of the report and 

its accom
panying volum

es of evidence, T
im

e, N
ew

sw
eek, and th

e 
N

ew
 Y

ork T
im

es d
elivered

 th
eir verd

icts. T
h

ey gave sp
ace to 

articles ran
gin

g from
 th

e cau
stic to th

e op
en

ly sarcastic. O
n

e 
distinguished com

m
entator "declined to accept" the acoustics 

evidence that tw
o gunm

en w
ere at w

ork in D
ealey P

laza, yet it w
as 

clear from
 his com

m
ents that he had not studied the vital detail of 

that evidence. O
ne reporter sneered at those he dubbed "conspi-

racy junkies," and another gloom
ily foresaw

 that now
 "w

ackier 
and w

ackier the theories w
ill grow

." H
ad h

e read the C
om

m
ittee's 

findings, the latter w
riter w

ould have found that the latest inquiry 
h

ad
 p

erform
ed

 th
e w

elcom
e service of d

isp
osin

g of th
e m

an
y 

fantasies w
hich had surrounded the case. 

I started w
ork on the K

ennedy case w
ith the apprehensive 

expectation that I w
ould be sifting m

ore than a dozen years of 
intensive investigative reporting. I found, w

ith astonishm
ent, that 

I w
as in a virtual journalistic vacuum

. T
he K

ennedy assassination 
never w

as treated w
ith the assiduous reporting effort that fol- 

low
ed W

atergate. It occurred in a tim
e w

hen the reporter's vital 
instinct of inquiry w

as dulled by trust in the official investigation. 
T

he necessary follow
-up w

as sw
ept aw

ay in the avalanche of the 
m

etam
orphic Sixties. W

ith a handful of honorable exceptions, few
 

professional journalists did original w
ork on the K

ennedy assassi-
nation. T

o m
y am

azem
ent, I repeatedly found m

yself the first 
reporter to interview

 relevant w
itnesses. 

A
fter the A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee reported, one A

m
erican 

editorial opined that the C
om

m
ittee had done no. serviceu his- 

tory and should never have m
et at all if the best it could do w

as 
prolong public confusion. Its w

riter claim
ed w

ith assurance that 
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"
few

 A
m

erican
s are very ferven

t th
ese d

ays in
 th

eir d
esire to 

know
 the single, burning, absolute truth about the killings." N

o 
reporter should presum

e to read the public m
ind, and —

 I venture 
to say—

 it does not really m
atter in this case w

hether the A
m

eri-
can people are w

eary of T
he K

ennedy assassination or not. B
e-

tw
een hysteria and the cem

ent of history there is that essential 
to an

y civilized
 society —

 ju
stice. 

T
he reporters w

ho m
ocked the latest assassination investiga-

tion
 also p

rod
u

ced
 d

istu
rb

in
g q

u
otes from

 law
-en

forcem
en

t 
authorities. O

ne Justice D
epartm

ent official w
as reported as say-

ing that the latest official inquiry "offered nary a clue" as to w
ho, 

other than O
sw

ald, m
ight have taken part in the assassination. 

A
nother declared that the Justice D

epartm
ent has better things to 

do than to "chase ghosts." T
he first w

ould find clues aplenty w
ere 

he to study the seven thousand pages of A
ssassinations C

om
m

it-
tee evidence on the K

ennedy case. H
e m

ight even find them
 in this 

book. A
s for the second official, the outburst is at odds w

ith his 
responsibility as a trusted public official. 

A
s for the C

IA
, its arrogance tow

ard the civilian adm
inistra -

tion is recorded tim
e and again in these pages. F

or C
ongressm

en 
on the A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee, its perform

ance w
as as galling 

as ever. O
ne, C

ongressm
an F

ithian, noted at one public hearing 
that the A

gency had dispatched a spokesm
an w

ho declared him
-

self "not qualified" to discuss the subject of L
ee O

sw
ald, "w

hich 
h

ap
p

en
s to b

e th
e on

ly th
in

g th
is com

m
ittee w

as p
rim

arily 
interested in." C

ongressm
an D

odd w
as so outraged by w

hat he 
learned about both the F

B
I and the C

IA
 that he added his ow

n 
eloq

u
en

t footn
ote to th

e C
om

m
ittee's rep

ort. D
od

d
 in

sisted
, 

"T
hese tw

o agencies need the rule of law
. T

he attitude that they 
w

ere free to fu
n

ction
 ou

tsid
e or ab

ove th
e law

 allow
ed

 th
ese 

abuses to occur. T
here m

ust be no question that the C
ongress 

intends for these agencies to operate w
ithin the law

 and that the 
A

m
erican public dem

and that they do so. I believe that even today 
the attitude of being in som

e w
ay above the law

 lingers in these 
agen

cies."
 C

on
gressm

an
 D

od
d

, lik
e h

is colleagu
e F

ith
ian

, 
deplored the fact that the C

IA
 had failed to send to the C

om
m

it-
tee a s okesm

an re ared to discuss the role of that central fi ure 
—

 L
ee O

sw
ald

. In
 con

clu
sion

, th
e C

on
gressm

an
 tu

rn
ed

 to 
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Shakespeare to ask the question he posed to the A
m

erican people 
about the C

IA
. H

e asked, quoting Julius C
aesar, 

"
U

p
on

 w
h

at m
eat d

oth
 th

is, ou
r C

aesar, feed
 

T
hat he is grow

n so great?"  

' "P
erhaps," D

odd concluded, "it is the m
eat of our indiffer-

ence. If so, w
e can afford to be indifferent no longer." 

T
he C

hief C
ounsel of the A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee, P

rofes-
sor R

obert B
lakey, is a m

eticulous law
yer. H

e has a reputation for 
extrem

e caution and a painstaking regard for hard evidence. Since 
the C

om
m

ittee issued its R
eport he has broken his custom

ary 
silen

ce to em
p

h
asize th

at th
e fact th

at th
ere w

ere at least tw
o 

gunm
en in D

allas, and thus a conspiracy, is "a scientifically based 
fact." T

he P
rofessor says, "T

he C
om

m
ittee has provided a road 

m
ap that indicates the points of departure for subsequent inves-

tigation that need not be lim
ited as C

ongressional investigations 
are —

 N
ew

 O
rleans in the case of the K

ennedy assassination. . . . 
T

he G
overnm

ent, to live up to the m
eaning of Justice, can do no 

less than to pursue the course the C
om

m
ittee has charted. W

hy? 
B

ecause statutes of lim
itation do not apply to m

urder, certainly 
n

ot th
e m

u
rd

ers of m
en

 lik
e Joh

n
 F

. K
en

n
ed

y.... Ju
stice 

dem
ands no less." 
T

he C
hief C

ounsel is right, and his forthright com
m

ents lead 
to the aspiration w

ith w
hich justice is inextricably entw

ined -
m

orality. In m
id-1979, at a low

 point in his ow
n adm

inistration's 
fortunes, the fourth successor to John K

ennedy, P
resident Jim

m
y 

C
arter, addressed the nation on w

hat he called "the crisis of the 
spirit in our country." H

e listed the ills of an A
m

erica endangered 
from

 w
ithin —

 a nation in w
hich only a third of the people even

 
bother to vote, w

hose productivity is falling, w
here there is a 

row
ing disrespect for all the established institutions. P

resident 
C

arter firm
ly dated the m

ilestones in the process that led to the 
C

riSiS• T
hey w

ere, he said, the executions of national figures w
hich 

began w
ith the killing of P

resident K
ennedy. 

In
 a sch

izop
h

ren
ic era, th

e assassin
ation

 of P
resid

en
t 

K
ennedy has reflected the best and the w

orst hallm
arks of the 

: .• o
r. 

global attention, w
as som

ehow
 intrinsically A

m
erican, as sem

inal 



e exp
resses 	

a
 e

 m
e
n

c
a
n

 e
g
a
 m

a
c
 in

- 
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to the Sixties as the broadcast dram
as of V

ietnam
, the revolu-

tion of international youth, and the landing on the m
oon. T

he first 
K

ennedy inquiry w
as bungled, for all the pom

p and circum
stance 

w
ith w

hich its conclusions w
ere announced. It w

as an analgesic, 

and confuse one generation and outrage its parents. In the Seven-
ties, the reopening of the K

ennedy inquiry w
as a response by the 

law
m

akers to a national doubt th
at questioned far m

ore than the 
m

anner of one-m
an's passing. In 1981 it is conceivable that the 

concepts of justice and m
orality m

ay surface from
 a sea of cyni-

cism
 and resum

e their place at the core of A
m

erican life. P
erhaps 

th
at h

op
e w

ill n
ot, on

ly th
ree years aw

ay from
 1984, d

raw
 

conditioned derision. 
It is fitting, perhaps, to close w

ith the w
ords of one w

ho w
as 

not yet an A
m

erican citizen w
hen P

resident K
ennedy w

as assassi-
nated. In 1978 Silvia O

dio, the C
uban exile w

hose chilling tes-
tim

ony about "O
sw

ald" rem
ains the m

ost com
pelling hum

an 
evidence of conspiracy, gave m

e a television interview
. W

hen I 
asked her w

hy she w
as now

 prepared to talk, after refusing press 
approaches for so long, she w

as silent for a long m
om

ent. T
hen she 

said, "I guess it is a feeling of frustration after so m
any years. I feel 

outraged that w
e have not discovered the truth for history's sake, 

for all of us. I think it is because I'm
 very angry about it all—

 the 
forces I cannot understand and the fact that there is nothing I can 
do against them

. T
hat is w

hy I am
 here." 

A
 m

ultitude of citizens, not only in the U
nited States, w

ould 
certainly agree w

ith that sentim
ent. T

he A
ssassinations C

om
m

it .  
tee C

hief C
ounsel, in a rem

arkable statem
ent, has expressed his 

belief that it is not necessarily too late to see justice done. H
e has 

d
eclared

 th
at th

ere are tod
ay "

livin
g p

eop
le w

h
o cou

ld
 h

ave b
een

 
in

volved
 in

 th
e assassin

ation
s of M

artin L
uther K

ing and Presi-
d

en
t K

en
n

ed
y. T

h
ese p

eop
le sh

ou
ld

 b
e vigorou

sly in
vestigated

 b
y 

all con
stitu

tion
al m

ean
s."

 P
rofessor B

lak
ey asserts th

at "
th

ere are 
th

in
gs th

at can
 b

e d
on

e, in
 a crim

in
al ju

stice con
text, to m

ove th
is 

tow
ard

s trial . ."
 O

n
 a case so lon

g n
eglected

, th
e C

h
ief C

ou
n

sel 
w

arn
s th

at h
e cou

ld
 n

ot b
e su

re of b
rin

gin
g an

 in
d

ictm
en

t th
at 

• 
4 	

S
 I 	

II 	
♦
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th
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k
 I cou

ld
 com
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T
h

at statem
en

t, from
 a d

istin
gu

ish
ed

 an
d

 resp
on

sib
le 

cou
n

sel, sh
ou

ld
 n

ot go u
n

h
eed

ed
 in

 a fu
n

ction
in

g d
em

ocracy. 
In

 its fin
al R

ep
ort, th

e A
ssassin

ation
s C

om
m

ittee ask
ed

 th
e 

Ju
stice D

ep
artm

en
t to stu

d
y th

e evid
en

ce so far assem
b

led
, 

and recom
m

end w
hether further action should be taken. T

hat 
in ear y 	

'. w
o years later, as th

is ed
ition

 goes to p
ress, 

the Justice D
epartm

ent has yet to report back to C
ongress. Its 

attitu
d

e to th
e K

en
n

ed
y case, h

ow
ever, is d

istressin
gly clear. 

D
ep

artm
en

t officials b
egan

 b
y m

ovin
g extrem

ely slow
ly —

 
even

 m
ore slow

ly th
an

 on
e m

ay exp
ect from

 a b
u

reau
cracy. 

W
hen pressed on the delay by the C

hairm
an of the A

ssassina-
tions C

om
m

ittee, the O
ffice of the A

ttorney G
eneral responded 

w
ith foolish nitpicking about the precise dates on w

hich it had 
received

 C
om

m
ittee m

aterial. T
h

en
, late in

 1980, th
e Ju

stice 
D

ep
artm

en
t m

ad
e p

u
b

lic an
 F

B
I review

 of th
e acou

stics evi-
d

en
ce th

at p
ersu

ad
ed

 th
e C

om
m

ittee th
ere w

ere tw
o gu

n
m

en
 

in
volved

 in
 th

e assassin
ation

. T
h

e F
B

I rep
ort, a m

ere tw
en

ty-
tw

o pages long, declared the tw
o-gunm

an finding "invalid" for 
lack of scientific proof that shots w

ere actually recorded, or that 
a second gunm

an fired at the P
resident from

 the front. T
here 

w
ere im

m
ed

iate p
rotests from

 th
e con

su
ltan

ts w
h

o origin
ally 

advised the A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee. T
hat w

as perhaps pre-
d

ictab
le, yet even

 a lay read
in

g reveals th
at th

e F
B

I review
 is 

flaw
ed

. O
n

e ob
server q

u
estion

s h
ow

 m
u

ch
 of th

e p
u

b
lish

ed
 

review
 is th

e w
ork

 of th
e B

u
reau

's m
an

agem
en

t, rath
er th

an
 

that of its scientists. A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee C
hief C

ounsel 
B

lakey expresses uncharacteristic anger, calling the F
B

I review
 

"a public relations gim
m

ick designed to avoid carrying the in-
vestigation forw

ard." H
e adds bitterly that the Justice D

epart-
m

ent has failed to do the w
ork the C

om
m

ittee requested —
 not 

only on the acoustics but in other key areas. P
rofessor B

lakey 
respects today's F

B
I for its general integrity and com

petence, 
but says that "on the K

ennedy case they seem
 institutionally in-

capable of thinking or acting positively. It is a failure that began 
w

ithin a day of the assassination, w
hen the F

B
I decided there 

w
as n

o con
sp

iracy, an
d

 it h
as b

lock
ed

 op
en

-m
in

d
ed

 h
an

d
lin

g 
of th

e case ever sin
ce."

 O
n

ce, th
e A

ssassin
ation

s C
om

m
ittee 
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cry w
ou

ld
 red

eem
 th

e p
ast failu

res in
 th

e case of P
resid

en
t 

K
en

n
ed

y. T
od

ay, after seein
g h

ow
 th

e C
om

m
ittee's w

ork
 h

as 
been m

ishandled, he is openly outraged. P
rofessor B

lakey now
 

says "T
he Justice D

epartm
ent is burying this thing because they 

9
 	

• • 

m
ent w

ill get out from
 under this thing entirely, and nothing else 

is going to be done about it —
 a conspiracy to kill m

y P
resident 

an
d

 you
rs."

 
F

orm
er A

ttorney G
eneral R

obert K
ennedy w

as reported as 
sayin

g, tw
o d

ays b
efore h

is ow
n

 assassin
ation

 in
 1968, "I n

ow
 

fully realize that only the pow
ers of the P

residency w
ill reveal 

the secrets of m
y brother's death." T

oday, either the P
resident 

or th
e A

ttorn
ey G

en
eral can

 ap
p

oin
t an

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t S
p

ecial 
P

rosecutor, as w
as done after W

atergate. T
he inadequacy at the 

Ju
stice D

ep
artm

en
t rein

forces th
e feelin

g of som
e ob

servers 
th

at on
ly su

ch
 a cou

rse cou
ld

 n
ow

 b
e effective. 

T
he traum

a of the m
urder of P

resident K
ennedy w

ill not go 
aw

ay in our lifetim
e. A

 com
prehensive judicial inquiry —

 and 
to date there has been no such thing —

 should prom
ptly investi -

gate those living persons w
ho are potential suspects in the con-

spiracy to m
urder P

resident K
ennedy. If the evidence justifies 

it, th
ey sh

ou
ld

 b
e b

rou
gh

t to trial. 
Such an inquiry, full and unfettered, could purge the frus- 

tration
s an

d
 th

e d
ou

b
ts of a gen

eration
. It m

ay fail to d
o so, 

but —
 as the A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee C

hief C
ounsel insists -

ju
stice d

em
an

d
s n

o less. W
ith

ou
t su

ch
 an

 effort, th
e d

yin
g of 

P
resident K

ennedy becom
es, indeed, a confirm

ation of the age 
of uncertainty.  

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 25 

A
fterw

ord: 
for "M

aurice B
ishop" 

D
avid P

hillips, the form
er C

IA
 officer considered by the Select 

C
om

m
ittee on

 A
ssassin

ation
s as a p

ossib
le can

d
id

ate for th
e 

true identity behind the cover nam
e "M

aurice B
ishop," reacted 

strongly w
hen this book w

as published in the sum
m

er of 1980. 
H

e con
tacted

 top
 execu

tives in
 n

ew
sp

ap
ers an

d
 television

, 
m

ak
in

g h
im

self availab
le to cou

n
ter p

assages in
 C

on
spiracy 

con
cern

in
g h

im
. A

s a resu
lt, I took

 p
art in

 d
iscu

ssion
s w

ith
 

P
hillips on prom

inent television program
s. 

In
 th

e cou
rse of th

ese ap
p

roach
es to th

e p
ress, P

h
illip

s 
con

tacted
 th

e ed
itor of th

e W
ash

in
gton

 P
ost. Subsequently, 

w
hen a reporter w

as assigned to the story, P
hillips revealed the 

real identity of form
er C

IA
 officers w

hose identities w
ere pro-

tected
 b

y p
seu

d
on

ym
s in

 A
ssassin

ation
s C

om
m

ittee rep
orts 

and in m
y book. P

hillips observed that "C
ross," the case officer 

w
ho believed P

hillips had indeed used the nam
e "B

ishop," w
as 

a heavy drinker, im
plying that he w

as prone to getting his facts 
w

ron
g. S

h
ortly afterw

ard
s, w

h
en

 a 
P

ost 
rep

orter visited
 

"C
ross" at hom

e, he found that P
hillips had been on the phone 

to him
 only a short tim

e earlier. W
hatever had passed betw

een 
th

em
, "

C
ross"

 stood
 b

y h
is assertion

 th
at th

e n
am

e "
B

ish
op

"
 

had been used in the M
iam

i C
IA

 office, and that he believed it 
w

as u
sed

 to refer to P
h

illip
s. "C

ross" ad
m

its th
at he w

as for-
m

erly a heavy drinker, but —
 as noted earlier —

 has show
n that 

his recall of nam
es and details other than "B

ishop" is accurate. 
In

 a fu
rth

er con
versation

, w
ith

 th
is au

th
or, in

 1981, "
C

ross"
 

seem
ed

 u
p

set b
y th

e in
terest h

is statem
en

ts h
ave cau

sed
, an

d
 

com
plained the A

ssassinations C
om

m
ittee gave it "undue em

-
phasis." H

e agreed, how
ever, that he had been correctly quoted. 

A
 subs L

atent check w
ith congressional investigators revealed 

that "C
ross" originally linked the nam

e "B
ishop" w

ith that of 
D

avid P
hillips prom

ptly and spontaneously. 
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T
h

e
 W

ash
in

gton
 P

ost reporter w
as also ab

le to talk
 to 

P
h

illip
s' form

er M
iam

i assistan
t, "

D
ou

g G
u

p
ton

."
 H

e said
, 

m
uch as he had said to the C

om
m

ittee, "I never used the nam
e 

'B
ish

op
,' to m

y recollection
."

 F
in

ally, th
e rep

orter visited
 

"
B

.H
.,"

 th
e form

er C
IA

 covert op
erative w

h
o told

 th
e C

orn
 

m
ittee h

e h
ad

 m
et "

B
ish

op
"

 in
 th

e p
ast, b

u
t w

h
ose testim

on
y 

prom
pted a skeptical reaction from

 the C
om

m
ittee investigator. 

"B
.H

.," a short, dark m
an of C

uban origin, is belligerent—
 

not least about the w
ay the C

IA
 has been treated in recent years. 

H
e told

 th
e C

om
m

ittee th
at P

h
illip

s w
as "

a p
erson

al frien
d

,"
 

an
 officer h

e w
ork

ed
 w

ith
 closely on

 a "
d

ay-to-d
ay"

 b
asis on

 
C

u
b

an
 op

eration
s b

etw
een

 1960 an
d

 1964. In
terview

ed
 b

y th
e 

W
ash

in
gton

 P
ost in

 1980, B
.H

. stated that after P
hillips testified 

to th
e C

om
m

ittee, b
u

t b
efore h

e h
im

self w
as form

ally in
ter-

view
ed

, h
e d

iscu
ssed

 th
e C

om
m

ittee in
q

u
iry w

ith
 P

h
illip

s. In
 

his C
om

m
ittee interview

 "B
.H

." w
as asked sim

ply w
hether he 

had know
n anybody nam

ed M
aurice B

ishop. A
fter replying that 

h
e h

ad
, "

B
.H

."
 resp

on
d

ed
 to C

om
m

ittee q
u

estion
in

g, "
M

r. 
B

ishop w
as in the organization but I had no personal day-to-day 

open relationship w
ith him

. P
hillips, yes; B

ishop, no. I knew
 them

 
b

oth
."

 "
B

.H
."

 ap
p

eared
 in

 h
is rep

lies to b
e stressin

g th
at h

e 
rem

em
bered "B

ishop" as being som
ebody other than P

hillips. 
T

here are notable discrepancies betw
een w

hat "B
.H

." told the 
C

om
m

ittee and w
hat he said to the P

o
st. H

e told the C
om

m
ittee he 

encountered "B
ishop" "tw

o or three tim
es." H

e told the P
ost he 

m
et him

 only once. H
e told the C

om
m

ittee that he encountered 
"B

ishop" betw
een 1960 and 1964. In h

is P
ost interview

, he said it 

w
as probably after 1964 —

 after the tim
e m

ost relevant to the 
V

ecian
a allegation

s. "
B

.H
."

 told
 th

e C
om

m
ittee h

e w
ork

ed
 

closely w
ith P

hillips betw
een 1960 and 1964. In the conversation 

w
ith the P

o
st, he claim

ed he did not w
ork w

ith P
hillips until after 

1964. "B
.H

." accounts for these differences by claim
ing that his 

com
m

en
ts w

ere "
w

ron
gly record

ed
."

 
T

he A
ssassinations C

om
m

ittee investigator of the "B
ishop" 

case su
sp

ects th
at th

e "
B

.H
."

 scen
ario m

ay b
e a red

 h
errin

g ,  

designed to confuse the trail. Such justifiable suspicions m
ight 

the 
ave • en

 reso 
"B

ishop" case the attention it deserved. Sadly it did not. W
hile 

P
hillips did testify, the C

om
m

ittee failed to take testim
ony on 
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oath
 from

 "
C

ross,"
 "

B
.H

.,"
 or "

G
u

p
ton

."
 "

C
ross,"

 w
h

o told
 

tw
o in

vestigators h
e b

elieved
 "

B
ish

op
"

 w
as P

h
illip

s, w
as n

ot 
even

 su
b

jected
 to form

al in
terview

. T
h

ere w
ere n

o system
atic 

interrogations of relevant C
IA

 officers w
ho m

ight have further 
con

firm
ed

 th
e u

se of th
e n

am
e "

B
ish

op
."

 T
h

e C
om

m
ittee 

failed
 to follow

 u
p

 on
 a k

ey lead
 p

rovid
ed

 b
y V

ecian
a —

 th
e 

id
en

tity of a p
rom

in
en

t C
u

b
an

 w
h

o m
ay h

ave origin
ally p

ro-
p

osed
 V

ecian
a to "

B
ish

op
"

 as a p
rom

isin
g can

d
id

ate for C
IA

 
recruitm

ent. T
he C

uban's nam
e w

as know
n to the C

om
m

ittee, 
an

d
 is k

n
ow

n
 to th

is au
th

or. O
th

er lead
s received

 cu
rsory 

treatm
ent. 

T
h

e C
om

m
ittee n

ever tried
 to trace a vital w

itn
ess w

h
ose 

nam
e w

as provided by V
eciana m

onths before the C
om

m
ittee 

w
ound up its inquiry. V

eciana had spoken, from
 the start, of a 

go-betw
een w

hom
 he used during his association w

ith "B
ishop." 

H
e explained that, in line w

ith intelligence tradecraft, "B
ishop" 

had alw
ays initiated their clandestine m

eetings, either by tele-
p

h
on

in
g d

irect, or th
rou

gh
 a th

ird
 p

erson
 w

h
o alw

ays k
n

ew
 

w
here to reach V

eciana. V
eciana w

as long reluctant to identify 
this third party, but finally did so —

 providing an old, invalid 
ad

d
ress in

 P
u

erto R
ico. In

 1980 1 d
id

 follow
 u

p
 th

e lead
, an

d
 

tracked dow
n the V

eciana–"B
ishop" go-betw

een. T
his proved 

to b
e th

e first in
d

ep
en

d
en

t corrob
oration

 th
at V

ecian
a really 

w
as in touch w

ith som
ebody called "B

ishop." 
T

he person w
ho helped arrange m

eetings betw
een "B

ishop" 
and V

eciana is a w
om

an, a prim
 grandm

other in her fifties, w
ho 

w
orks as a m

inor functionary in a U
.S. governm

ent adm
inistra-

tive d
ep

artm
en

t. S
h

e h
as req

u
ested

 an
on

ym
ity, an

d
 w

ill b
e 

id
en

tified
 h

ere on
ly as "

F
ab

iola,"
 a C

u
b

an
 exile w

h
o left 

H
avana in autum

n 1961. She w
orked, until that year, as V

eci-
ana's secretary at the B

anco F
inanciero, and w

as there at the 
tim

e V
eciana claim

s he w
as recruited by "B

ishop." W
hile she 

says V
eciana never then m

entioned a C
IA

 contact, F
abiola re-

calls details w
hich fit his story. She recalls a tim

e w
hen V

eciana 
started going to "language courses" in the evenings. V

eciana, 
in his earliest interview

s, spoke of attending nightly U
.S. intelli-

gence briefings in an office building w
hich housed, on the first 

becom
e aw

are that V
eciana w

as involved in subversive activi- 
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ties. H
e on

ce p
rod

u
ced

 th
e h

u
ge su

m
 of h

alf a m
illion

 d
ollars, 

w
h

ich
 h

e ask
ed

 h
er to safegu

ard
 u

n
til h

e retrieved
 it. V

ecian
a 

h
as alw

ays said
 h

e w
ork

ed
 w

ith
 "

B
ish

op
"

 on
 a "

p
rogram

 
"

 In
 u

b
a

that  

resulted in the destabilization of the C
uban currency. 	

C
,
 

F
abiola decided not to ask V

 eciana aw
kw

ard questioxile
n

s. P
ocol-

liti-

cally, sh
e sym

p
ath

ized
 w

ith
 h

im
, an

d
 later —

 in
 e 

lab
orated

 actively w
h

en
 V

ecian
a b

ecam
e lead

er of A
lp

h
a 66. 

H
e asked her to act as answ

ering service for him
 w

hen he w
as 

traveling, and in, the m
onths to com

e F
abiola becam

e fam
iliar 

w
ith the nam

e of a caller from
 the m

ainland U
nited States. T

he 
n

am
e w

as "
B

ish
op

."
 W

h
en

 I in
terview

ed
 F

ab
iola I th

rew
 ou

t 
a num

ber of nam
es, including that of "B

ishop." "B
ishop" w

as 
the only nam

e to w
hich she responded, and it stirred in her the 

m
em

ory of another nam
e. "B

ishop" is firm
ly linked in F

abiola's 
m

in
d

 w
ith

 a secon
d

 p
erson

 —
 "

P
rew

ett."
 F

or h
er, th

e tw
o 

nam
es are so definitely associated that at first she had difficulty 

rem
em

b
erin

g w
h

ich
 w

as w
h

ich
. F

ab
iola says b

oth
 in

d
ivid

u
als 

telephoned V
eciana over the sam

e period, and she understood 
that they w

ere associated w
ith one another. She believed both 

"
B

ish
op

"
 an

d
 "

P
rew

ett"
 w

ere con
n

ected
 w

ith
 an

 A
m

erican
 

new
s publication, based on the E

ast C
oast. F

inally, she recalls 

th
at "

P
rew

ett"
 w

as fem
ale. 

A
 check of A

m
erican press directories turned up V

irginia 
P

rtw
ett, a W

ashington journalist w
ho has specialized in L

atin 
A

m
erican affairs all her life. She has w

ritten extensively about 
the struggle betw

een F
idel C

astro, w
hom

 she has characterize d  

as a "betrayer," and the C
uban exiles, w

hom
 she describes as 

"patriots." In sum
m

er 1963 P
rew

ett attended a conference on 
C

uba co-sponsored by F
reedom

 H
ouse and the C

itizen's C
om

-
m

ittee for a F
ree C

uba. H
er report on the conference, latcaer ll in 

serted in the C
o

n
g

ressio
n

al R
eco

rd
, began by quoting a 	

by 

F
reed

om
 H

ou
se "

to rem
ove b

oth
 F

id
el C

astro an
d

th
e S

oviet 
presence from

 C
uba w

ithout delay." F
or m

any years, P
rew

ett 
A

N
A

) 
w

rote for th
e N

orth
 A

m
erican

 N
ew

sp
ap

er A
llian

ce (N
,  

a syndication organization founded by P
rew

ett's friend E
rnest 

the C
om

m
ittee for a F

ree C
uba. It w

as 
C

uneo, also a m
em

ber of  
C

uneo, a veteran of the C
IA

's forerunner, the O
ffice of Strati 

 
etqc 

Services, w
ho arranged for P

rew
ett to w

ork for N
A

N
A

. In  
N

A
N

A
 w

as severely criticized
 in

 a S
en

ate C
om

m
ittee R

ep
ot 
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for syndicating pro–C
hiang K

ai-shek propaganda w
ritten by a 

paid A
m

erican lobbyist. 
In spring 1963, seven m

onths before the K
ennedy assassi-

nation, P
rew

ett w
as assailing the adm

inistration for its opposi-
tion

 to th
e raid

s m
ou

n
ted

 again
st C

u
b

a b
y A

n
ton

io V
ecian

a's 
A

lpha 66 guerrillas. O
n A

pril 2, in the W
ash

in
g

to
n

 D
aily N

ew
s, 

'P
rew

ett lam
basted a K

ennedy spokesm
an w

ho had "called the 
daring and gallant A

lpha 66 raids on C
uba irresponsible acts." 

P
rew

ett called this "an all-tim
e low

 in pronouncem
ent of U

.S. 
foreign policy," and m

ocked the notion that "unless w
e stop the 

A
lpha 66 raids against C

om
m

unist C
uba, there'll be nuclear con-

flict."
 T

h
ree w

eek
s later, after. P

resid
en

t K
en

n
ed

y ord
ered

 
strong m

easures against w
ould-be exile raiders, P

rew
ett rushed 

to support the exile leadership and berated the K
ennedy W

hite 
H

ou
se for assu

m
in

g it h
ad

 "
carte b

lan
ch

e to create a foreign
 

p
olicy ou

tsid
e th

e n
ation

's p
op

u
lar con

sen
t."

 T
h

ese P
rew

ett 
articles w

ere read into the C
o

n
g

ressio
n

al R
eco

rd
. 

T
h

e A
lp

h
a 66 raid

s, w
h

ich
 so em

b
arrassed

 P
resid

en
t 

K
en

n
ed

y an
d

 w
h

ich
 p

leased
 V

irgin
ia P

rew
ett, w

ere th
e very 

attack
s w

h
ich

 —
 accord

in
g to A

lp
h

a 66 lead
er V

ecian
a -

w
ere carried

 ou
t on

 sp
ecific in

stru
ction

s from
 C

IA
 officer 

"
M

au
rice B

ish
op

."
 A

s V
ecian

a tells it, "
B

ish
op

's"
 in

ten
tion

 
w

as to cau
se fu

rth
er trou

b
le b

etw
een

 K
en

n
ed

y an
d

 R
u

ssia -
w

ith
in

 m
on

th
s of th

e M
issile C

risis w
h

ich
 h

ad
 b

rou
gh

t th
e 

w
orld

 to th
e b

rin
k

 of n
u

clear w
ar. H

is p
u

rp
ose w

as "
to p

u
t 

K
en

n
ed

y again
st th

e w
all in

 ord
er to force h

im
 to m

ak
e d

eci-
sions that w

ill rem
ove C

astro's regim
e." 

In the com
pany of a W

ash
in

g
to

n
 P

o
st reporter, I talked to 

V
irginia P

rew
ett in 1980. She agreed that she had contact w

ith 
A

lp
h

a 66 in
 th

e early sixties, an
d

 accep
ted

 th
at A

lp
h

a 66 w
as 

"probably" backed by the C
IA

 —
 even if its leaders w

ere not 
form

ally told
 so. P

rew
ett m

ad
e it clear sh

e w
as on

ce fam
iliar 

w
ith

 th
e w

ork
 of th

e grou
p

's lead
er, V

ecian
a, an

d
 ask

ed
, 

"W
here is he now

?" L
ater in the interview

, how
ever, she said 

she had never m
et V

eciana. V
eciana, for his part, says he did 

k
n

ow
 P

rew
ett, an

d
 refers to h

er as "
V

irgin
ia."

 H
e asserts h

e 
m

et her at her hotel in P
uerto R

ico m
ore than once, and "prob-

ably in W
ashington." W

hen the nam
e "B

ishop" w
as fast raised 

w
ith

 P
rew

ett, in
 th

e con
text of th

e C
IA

 an
d

 C
u

b
a, sh

e said
, 

;.: 

fn 
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"
W

ell,, you
 h

ad
 to m

ove arou
n

d
 p

eop
le lik

e th
at."

 W
h

en
 th

e 
nam

e cam
e up again, she said, "I didn't personally know

 him
," 

and later, in response to a direct question, she said she did not 
k

n
ow

 "
B

ish
op

."
 P

rew
ett also said

 sh
e h

ad
 n

ever m
et D

avid
 

P
hillips. P

hillips —
 asked about P

rew
ett —

 contradicts her. H
e 

says h
e on

ce k
n

ew
 P

rew
ett q

u
ite w

ell, sp
ecifically .recallin

g 
m

eetings in the D
om

inican R
epublic. 

C
ontacted by this author in early 1981, P

hillips w
as asked 

w
hether he stood by his denial that he w

as "M
aurice B

ishop," 
or in

d
eed

 k
n

ew
 a "

B
ish

op
,"

 a d
en

ial form
ally record

ed
 in

 th
e 

A
ssassin

ation
s C

om
m

ittee R
ep

ort. P
h

illip
s rep

eated
 th

at h
e 

n
eith

er w
as "

B
ish

op
,"

 n
or "

con
n

ected
 in

 an
y w

ay,"
 an

d
 said

 
an

y su
ch

 in
tim

ation
 w

as "
an

 ou
trageou

s accu
sation

."
 A

s for 
V

eciana, the source of the "B
ishop" allegation, he also repeated 

to th
is au

th
or th

at "
B

ish
op

"
 w

as n
ot P

h
illip

s. 
A

n
d

 th
ere, as th

is ed
ition

 goes to p
ress, th

e m
atter rests. 

F
ew

 can
 n

ow
 d

ou
b

t th
at th

ere w
as a "

M
au

rice B
ish

op
,"

 an
d

 
that he m

anipulated V
eciana for a U

.S. intelligence agency over 
m

an
y years. V

ecian
a's allegation

s ab
ou

t "
B

ish
op

"
 in

 con
n

ec-
tion w

ith the K
ennedy case rem

ain just that —
 allegations. T

hey 
are, h

ow
ever, d

eep
ly trou

b
lin

g. It is of great im
p

ortan
ce th

at 
"B

ishop" be unm
asked and investigated —

 w
ith all due consid-

eration
 for th

e n
ation

al secu
rity an

d
 for "

B
ish

op
's"

 p
erson

al 
safety as on

e w
h

o w
as on

ce active in
 in

telligen
ce. it is gettin

g 
late, b

u
t if th

e A
m

erican
 p

eop
le are ever to p

u
t th

e K
en

n
ed

y 
assassin

ation
 b

eh
in

d
 th

em
, th

is —
 lik

e oth
er seriou

s issu
es in

 
th

e case —
 m

u
st b

e resolved
. 
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